
AGENDA 
COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2024 

6:00 P.M. 
COUNTY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, OLD JAIL BUILDING 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance

4. Approval of Minutes
a) Regular Meeting, December 5, 2023
b) Work Session, January 16, 2024

5. Awards and Recognitions

6. Appearances & Public Presentations

a) Senator Margie Bright-Matthews – State Appropriations Funding Process
b) 2022 Audit Report – David Irwin, CPA - Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
c) 4-H Youth Development – Dawn Stuckey, Clemson University

7. Administrator’s Briefing

8. Public Hearing
a.) Lowcountry Council of Government Needs Assessment- Kimberly Mullinax

9. New Business
a) Resolution 24-R-01, To Declare February as Black History Month in Colleton County

b) Resolution 24-R-02, To Authorize Acceptance and Budgeting of Various Grants for
FY 2023-2024

c) Resolution 24-R-03, To Award the Contract for Architectural Services for the
Colleton County Detention Center Renovations and Upgrades to MRB Group
Consulting, P.C.

d) Resolution 24-R-04, To Award Bid FMD-17 for the Purchase of one Auto Car to
Worldwide Equipment, Inc.

e) Resolution 24-R-05, To Amend the Colleton County Record of Roads to Include Caboose
Court



f) Resolution 24-R-06, To Approve a Food Service Agreement for the Sheriff’s Office 
for the Colleton County Detention Center 

 
g) Resolution 24-R-07, To Award the Contract in Accordance with Bid FM-58 for 

Courthouse Window Replacement and Exterior Painting 
 
h) Resolution 24-R-08, To Approve a Change Order to the County’s Current Contract 

with IP Builders, Inc. for the Old Transfer Station Reuse Project 
 
i) Resolution 24-R-09, to Declare Surplus Various Vehicles and Equipment and to 

Authorize Their Sale in Accordance with County Policy 
 
j) Resolution 24-R-10, To Authorize the Initiation of Condemnation Proceedings for the 

Purpose of Acquiring Certain Real Property Owned by FLB, LLC and Being Subject 
to a Conservation Easement in Favor of the Lowcountry Land Trust 

 
k) Resolution 24-R-11, To Appoint Employees to the Colleton County Grievance 

Committee 
 

l) Resolution 24-R-12, To Authorize the Council Clerk to Advertise for Board 
Vacancies 

 
m) Resolution 24-R-13, To Appoint Members to Board Vacancies 

 
10. Items for Information and Public Record  

 
11. Public Comments (3 minutes per person/max time 20 min.) 

 
12. Council Time 

 
13. Executive Session 

a) Personnel – Sheriff’s Office 
b) Economic Development 

1) Update on current projects 
2) Solar Farm  

c) Real Estate 
1) Nancy Thomas 
2) Smoaks Community Center- Israel Jenkins 
3) Recreation 

 
14. Adjournment 

 
15. Informal Meeting of the Whole  

 
 

Colleton County Council will hold a regular meeting on Tuesday, February 6, 2024, at 6:00 pm. 
The public will be able to stream the meeting from a link on the County’s home page or by going 
to www.colletoncounty.org/live.  



County Council Meeting 

December 5, 2023 

Colleton County Council 

MINUTES 

TUESDAY, December 5, 2023 

REGULAR MEETING 

6:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers, Old Jail Building 
109 Benson Street 
Walterboro, SC 29488 

Present: Chairman Steven Murdaugh called the meeting to order with Council Members Dr. Joseph 
Flowers, Phillip Taylor, Bubba Trippe, and Scott Biering in attendance. 

Others Included: Meagan Utsey, Sean Thornton, Kaela Brinson, Jon Carpenter, Barry McRoy, 
David Greene, Sue Keith, Jerome Kizer, Jake Jacobs, Gary Rhode, Josh Rowland, Clarence 
Wiggins, 

Councilman Bubba Trippe gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Chairman Murdaugh made a motion to add Senator Sandy Senn under Appearances and Public 
Presentations. The motion was seconded by Councilman Taylor and the motion was carried 
unanimously. 

Approval of Minutes 

A. Regular Meeting November 7, 2023- Dr. Flowers moved to approve the minutes of the
Regular Meeting held on October 3, 2023. The motion was seconded by Councilman
Taylor and the motion carried unanimously.

Awards and Recognitions 

A. Proclamation-Colleton County Cougars Middle School Football Team -Chairman
Murdaugh read the Proclamation into the record. Councilman Taylor moved to adopt the
Proclamation congratulating the Colleton County Middle School Football Team. The
motion was seconded by Councilman Siering and the motion carried unanimously.

Appearances and Public Presentations 

A. Hurricane Evacuation Zone Changes 2024, Dr. David Greene, Deputy Chief, Colleton
County Fire-Rescue

Dr. Greene: Stated, I am here tonight to publicly announce that we will have new hurricane 
evacuation zones for the 2024 hurricane season. The screen to your left is our two evacuation 
zones, A "Red" and B "Yellow". On the right screen we have three evaluation zones, A "Red", B 
"Yellow", and C "Orange. The line passes below Wiggins and crosses the brickyard bridge on 

1 



















County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

1 
 

MINUTES 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2024 

WORK SESSION 
4:00 P.M. 

 
 

Colleton County Council  
Lowcountry Regional Airport 
537 Aviation Way 
Walterboro, SC 29488 
 
Present: Chairman Steven Murdaugh called the meeting to order with Council Members Dr. Joseph 
Flowers, Phillip Taylor, Bubba Trippe, and Scott Biering in attendance.  
 
Others Included: Meagan Utsey, Sean Thornton, Kaela Brinson, Solicitor Duffie Stone, Johnny 
Stieglitz, Latosia Simmons, Clarence Wiggins, Barry McRoy, and Sabrina Johnson. 
 
Councilman Bubba Trippe gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
New Business 

A. Capital Projects Update 
 
Mr. Stieglitz: stated, I am here to give you all an update on Capital Projects as a whole, as well as, 
some of the CPST projects.  
 

● Green Pond Fire Station: We are currently interviewing and will submit a proposal for 
replacement of the fire station to the architects this week. Hopefully, by the end of the 
month we will have a contract awarded and be able to move forward. 

● Neyles Fire Station: After talking with Chief McRoy today, I believe all is just about 
resolved.  

○ Mr. Griffin: Stated, we will be doing a friendly condemnation on this that will be 
on the next agenda. There is a conservation easement on the property and the easiest 
way for us to get from under that was to do a friendly condemnation on that 
particular property.  

○ Mr. Steiglitz: Stated, once all of that is complete we will begin the same IDC 
process and then go to work on the project.  

● Harrelson Building ADA/ New Entrance: This project is about 70% complete with the 
interior portion moving forward.  

● Harrelson Building: There is an IT project going on that is a separate project. This project 
is at the 40% mark. We are slowly renovating and moving office spaces in the building, as 
well as installing new security measures. The first security door has been installed by HR. 
This will isolate them as the general public does not need to access them. The same thing 
will be happening on the third floor to isolate the administration offices of Planning and 
Development. The Assessor’s Office will also receive the same door to isolate the 



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

2 
 

administrative office. There will also be a security door at the beginning of the IT 
Department. This will limit the public and help secure the facility.  

● Green Pond Community Center: This started off as a smaller project and some state 
funding was added to it due to the underground railway that came through this area. The 
state is land marking the Gullah-Geechee Trail. The interior framing, electrical, and HVAC 
is finishing up. They have also started the parking lot.  

● RPM Building Upfit for the Summer Feeding Program: We are doing a final walk 
through this week with a punch list. The punch list does not normally take more than a 
week to complete. Summer Feeding should be able to occupy that building by the end of 
this month borrowing no big problems with the punch list. 
*** Discussion was had on the Summer Feeding program.  

● Voter Registration: The building at the corner of Bells Hwy and Jefferies is at the 60% 
mark. They will start with setting toilets and the flooring in the coming week. Angela 
Upchurchwanted it for the first round of voting in March. While it is close now, I can't 
promise that. It will be done for the general election in November. Everything will be 
housed in this building. There is also an isolated area with HVAC that will be county 
storage. There will also be drive-thru voting.  
***Discussion of a reader board on the outside of the building was had.  

● Courthouse Window Replacement and Exterior Painting: The project is out to bid and 
due back by this Thursday. I hope to have this to council on the next agenda for approval. 
This project is scheduled to take a year due to the contractors not being able to work in 
certain areas when court is in session. They are only allowed to pull out and put back what 
can be done in a day rather than pulling them all out and working on putting them back in.  

● CPST  Projects: We started with the Animal Control project. They selected an architect 
for us to negotiate with. In my opinion, and as of today Mr. Griffin concurs with me, we 
are unable to come to an equitable negotiated cost for the project with them. They were 
pretty extravagant in their request. Generally, the architects are running anywhere from 10-
11% of the cost of construction. This company was at 17%. We are looking to go back 
through the process to see about getting a better price. 

● Emergency Operations Center: We had the kick off meeting this past week. This one 
came back right at 10% cost of construction.  

● Recreation Pool: I am in a holding pattern on this right now.  
○ Mr Griffin: Stated, Council, I would like for you all to give us some feedback on 

where you would like to put this facility, out where the current recreation center is 
or in town. If this is going to go in town we need to start looking at sites.  

○ Council discussed optional sites that would be located in town rather than at the 
current recreation center.  

○ Mr. Steiglitz: Stated, that it is taking two years from start to finish on all projects 
right now.  

 
Councilman Trippe requested Mr. Steiglitz to send updates on all projects through Mr. Griffin.  
 
***Further discussion was had on sites in town for the recreation pool. Council agreed that 
they would like to see available sites in town.  
 

mailto:aupchurch@colletoncounty.org
mailto:aupchurch@colletoncounty.org


County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

3 
 

● Veterans Park: I am on hold on this and waiting for a directive. There has been discussion 
with the Veterans Park and the Tuskegee Airman on a joint park. I just need a directive on 
this or if it is in a holding pattern. 

○ Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, it is not in a holding pattern. The money that we have 
is to go to the Veterans Park. The location is going to be out here. The Tuskegee 
group, their side of it, is in a holding pattern. I believe as far as the Veterans are 
concerned, we are full steam ahead. If the Tuskegee group wants to come around 
then they can participate. If they do not want to come around, then there may not 
be anything that we can do.  

○ Mr. Stieglitz: Stated, I will get with administration on the location and we will move 
forward.  

● Cottageville Park: This is just generally on hold. It is the last one on the list. I have been 
trying to tackle some of the other stuff.  

○ Mr.Griffin: Stated, we have a Legislative request to add a library there. That will 
take a little bit of time.  

● Coroner’s Facility: We are working with Administration on this. We have met with the 
Coroner and went through the same IDC process. We are supposed to have the architectural 
contract completed by Friday to have Administration sign. If you are facing the Sheriff’s 
Office, it will be to the left hand side.  

● Smoaks/Johnsville Community Center: I met with the Smoaks/ Johnsville Community 
Center board twice to go over the project. The second time we took a field trip to view the 
Neyles Community Center. I left it up to the board to send me a letter back to let me know 
that it was going to be fine and to let me know if they wanted to make any changes. My 
understanding is that the funding that was requested for the CPST was a duplicate or the 
same amount as the Neyles center. When that was submitted the engineer added additional 
funding to it because at that time it did not have enough for the architectural and 
engineering. The number used was just a construction number. Since the last meeting, the 
board wrote me a letter, as well, we copied several council members requesting that the 
facility look like the Green Pond facility. It is a bigger facility than Neyles. The Green 
Pond facility had an extra roughly $400,000 that was given to them to expand that facility 
because of the Harriet Tubman underground railroad trailer. When that request came in, it 
shocked me because I do not have that funding. So, I need a directive on what we are going 
to do.  

○ Councilman Taylor: Stated, let's invite them to our next meeting and have them 
come talk with us.  

○ Mr. Griffin: Stated, that is fine. Right now for this year, that would have to be a 
Legislative request.  

○ Mr. Steiglitz: Stated, the cost difference is around that $400,000 mark.  
○ Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, what you are saying is that when it was placed in the 

CPST it was placed to be designed like the Green Pond Facility? 
○ Mr. Steiglitz: Stated, Neyles Facility.  
○ Mr. Griffin: Stated, the Green Pond Facility was designed like the Green Pond 

Facility until we got the additional funding.  
○ Mr. Steiglitz: Stated, it was their request to have it like the Green Pond Facility and 

I do not have the funding to cover that.  



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

4 
 

○ Mr. Griffin: Stated, they could put in a Legislator request. We still have plenty of 
time to do that. 

○ Mr. Steiglitz: Stated, I did make them aware that the funding came in through 
Senator Matthews.   
 

Councilman Taylor: Stated, I know you have been doing a lot of updates at the jail, but I know the 
Sheriff still wants a new jail at some point. I know we do not have the money anywhere, but what 
are we thinking? 
 
Mr. Griffin: Stated, we have the MRB Group we just hired on IDC and they’re doing a review of 
the facility now. They are going to be looking at two things: upgrading the facility to bring it up 
to standards of the Department of Corrections according to the letter Chairman Murdaugh 
received, and they are looking at an expansion operation to make it last another 10-15 years that 
is equitable. They were looking at funding that with the GO Bond.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Asked, has there been any further discussion about the regional jail? 
 
Mr. Griffin: Stated, we were doing really well and having a lot of meetings until the issues arose 
in Beaufort County. It is my understanding that they should have someone to fill the administrator 
position here soon as the interim is not interested in the position. Beaufort County is the driver, 
because they have the most money.  
***Further conversation was had on the regional jail.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Asked, we have talked about the spending side of these Capital Projects. Is 
the money coming in as expected?  
 
Mr. Griffin: Stated, yes, we are doing very well.   
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, does anyone object to public questions? 
 
(Mr. Wiggins is paraphrased due to the recorder not picking up his voice consistently.)  
Mr. Wiggins: I do not know where the idea came from of building the Smoaks/Johnsville 
Community Center to the size of the Neyles Community Center. In a 10 miles radius, you are 
talking about 5,000 people. The size of the Neyles Community Center would not serve us well. 
The Neyles Center is smaller than our old building so, it would not be beneficial to the community. 
I was on the committee and I did not know it was designated to the size of Neyles.  
 
Mr. Griffin: Stated, my understanding is that you all worked directly with the architect and the 
engineer. We were not inside that process.  
 
Mr. Wiggins: Stated, Ross in Columbia told us to get with you all. He was supposed to come out 
there and meet with the trustees and he never did.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, we are going to have to look at that.  
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, let them come to the next meeting and meet with us.  



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

5 
 

Mr. Griffin: Stated, that is fine. My advice would be to put in a request through the Delegation.  
 
B. Senior Tax Work Off Program 
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, several counties have an opportunity for seniors to do a work off 
program instead of them having so much on their taxes. Dorchester County did one and I would 
like us to have a conversation about that. If some of these individuals can come in and work off 
some of this tax debt, maybe that would provide some support for us on getting things done and 
give them an off on their side of things.  
 
Councilman Trippe: Stated, the way I understood it was that the senior would pay the amount and 
then worked to be paid back for the amount that they paid in.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, this sounds like an internal program, not a state program, which is 
probably why they had to pay the amount first.  
 
Councilman Taylor read aloud the below:  
Dorchester County is currently accepting applications for the Senior Citizens Tax Work-Off 
Program through February 23, 2023.  The Senior Citizen Tax Work-Off Program permits senior 
citizens the opportunity to trade valuable time and needed skills for government services in 
exchange for compensation equal to their County property tax obligations.  Persons 60 years old 
(or older), that own property (in their name) in Dorchester County and reside at said property are 
eligible to apply.   
Senior citizens are compensated at minimum wage (currently $7.25 per hour) for the sum equal to 
that portion of their property tax bill designated for County Operating, County Debt and Capital 
Improvements.  Participants will be placed in various departments throughout the County and 
receive a check after they complete the requisite number of hours calculated. 
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, the application is simple with an area where they would type out their 
skill sets, limitations, and days they can work.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, I am not opposed to it. I think we will just need to stay within the 
parameters of the law. There are lots of boxes to check to make sure we are in compliance.  
 
Mr. Griffin: Asked, do you know how much it is being used in Dorchester? 
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, Jason told me it was being used, but I will have to get a definitive 
answer for you.  
 
Councilman Biering: Asked, could you get some more details and information from Dorchester 
County?  
 
C. GO Bond 

 
Mr. Griffin: Stated, we plan to wait until the very end to see what else we need to cover. This 
would include the Voter Registration building, the Coroner's Office, and the jail upgrades. We 



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

6 
 

have 12 million dollars in GO capacity so, we should not have any trouble. This may include 
another project that we will discuss in executive session.  
 
D. Lease Purchase 
 
Mr. Griffin: Stated, when we went to the lease purchase with all the passenger vehicles, it really 
helped us a lot. Now, with the lease purchase for the heavy equipment, it would include your heavy 
haulers at the landfill, motograter, fire trucks, etc. You all will see these coming up, so I wanted to 
let you know ahead of time.  
We will probably wait until the end of the budget year to do everything. We may have some 
projects that will need to be tacked on like the Ag Exposition Center, which is coming along well. 
We got an additional 1.1 million from the state and 2.4 million, that we feel pretty good about, 
coming from the USDA.  

 
E. Confederate Monument  
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, on May 10th, the Council received an email from Mrs. Sabrina 
Johnson, who is seated here today. The email read:  
 
Hello Colleton County Council Members:  

“Today, May 10, 2023, Colleton County is observing Confederate Memorial Day.[1]  This is a 
request that you reconsider the county officially observing Confederate Memorial Day in the 
future.  In 2019, The Associated Press reported that The State newspaper surveyed all 46 counties 
in South Carolina and Colleton County was 1 of 8 counties that closed in observance of the holiday 

and gave workers paid leave for the day each year.[2] Given that not all counties officially observe 
this holiday, it seems as if this is not mandated by the state and each county has control of their 
own holiday schedule or calendar.  Colleton County is choosing to observe Confederate Memorial 
Day.  As council members, you have the power to change this.    
In addition, as a resident of Colleton County, I submit that the time has come for the removal of 
the Confederate monument at the Colleton County Courthouse located at 101 Hampton Street, in 

Walterboro, South Carolina.[3]  The monument undermines our core principles of liberty and 
justice for all.  It is unconscionable that anyone going into the courthouse, a place promising equal 
justice for all, should be forced to do so under a shadow of injustice and suppression.  Removing 
this Confederate monument is necessary to maintain public confidence in the judiciary system and 
to achieve the greater good of ensuring racial justice and equality.   
The Confederate monument prominently displayed in a place of honor on the south front lawn of 
Colleton County Courthouse provides a governmental embrace of racists and white supremacy 
views.  The Confederate monument introduces the risk that impermissible factors such as 
unconscious or implicit biases, conscious prejudice, and sympathy for white supremacy views that 
violates the rights of people of color to a fair trial, an impartial jury, due process of the law, and 
equal protection of the law that’s provided under provisions of the South Carolina Constitution, 
and may impact decisions and actions inside the courthouse where fairness and justice for all is 
supposed to reign.   
  

https://www.google.com/maps/search/101+Hampton+Street?entry=gmail&source=g


County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

7 
 

On June 16, 2020, at the Colleton County Council Special Virtual Meeting, Colleton County 
Council Members discussed the Confederate monument located in front of Colleton County 

Courthouse.[4] Opinions of the Councilmen were given at the time about the monument, but no 
action was taken at the time, and I do not recall any other discussions or action taken regarding the 
community concerns and requests that the Confederate monument be moved.    
I appeal that you outline and commit to a process for a timely and definitive removal of the 
Confederate monument from the grounds of the Colleton County Courthouse.   
Lastly, I look forward to your response from each of you, as well as a response on the record.  
Thank you in advance for your consideration of these concerns and being of service to all citizens 
of Colleton County. 
With kindest regards, I am 
Sincerely,   
Sabrina L.W. Johnson” 
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, I wanted us to have some conversation. I understand that I am the sole 
minority black person on this Council. I don’t know how anyone can feel what I can feel. I am not 
indifferent toward, nor am I saying to destroy or demolish the Confederate Monument in any way. 
I am saying we can find a place, besides the front lawn of the Courthouse, for the Confederate 
Monument. We can also look at moving this holiday, and still give the staff the 12 days that they 
currently get. Most people around the country have gone to like a Good Friday. It is something 
that is non threatening to any groups, and it does not recognize any one person, instead of a 
confederate memorial day. Has anyone here heard of the Doctrine of Discovery? This issue has 
come up even most recently.The Doctrine of Discovery is being talked about in  many circles 
across the United States, but most recently in Canada. When Columbus and those came, there were 
over 100 million indigenous people here in this continent already. It is already documented, so 
some counties have decided to do an Indigenous Day. It is something for us to have a conversation 
about. The Doctrine of Discovery gave Europeans the right to create freedom and slavery at the 
same time. The Christians that came over from Europe, I am not a history professor but how I 
understand it is, if they could determine that a person was not Christian, then they could do land 
takings and colonize and do all of those things. If you look up the Doctrine of Discovery, you can 
see how it was used. Matter of fact, President Lincoln met with a group of ministers and other 
black leaders prior to the emancipation proclamation, and basically told them we are not getting 
along the right way in this country with you being here so, why don’t you organize and take your 
group back to Africa and we will help you resettle. That went through a couple of readings, but 
the Emancipation Proclamation was established. So,if you could determine that a person was 
property and not a person, you could sell them into slavery. These are scars that we face every day. 
People in the county have asked and we need to respond if we are going to do something or not do 
something. I am aware that there is a law in South Carolina about the Confederate Monument. I 
do not think it says we can not move it, because it has been moved several times. It is not in the 
original place that it was on the Courthouse grounds. When it was first installed, you could find it 
on the rear corner by the Novits Building, then it was moved to the Jeffries side. After the 
Courthouse was remodeled, it was moved to the front of the building in the center.If you go back 
to the Press and Standard, when it was placed there, it was brought from New York. The head 
person raising the money was from Charleston. Our state Senator came and spoke at the dedication. 
He stated that the justification for the Confederate Monument being in front of our Courthouse 
was the Egyptian pyramids standing in Egypt. So, I don’t know if there is any feeling to move the 



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

8 
 

Confederate Memorial Holiday to Good Friday so that people can still get their holiday. I do not 
have any indifference towards the Sons and Daughters of the Confederacy, I have a lot of friends 
everywhere, but when you look at a building, like the Courthouse, that has to represent everyone, 
it is a huge scar and a slap in the face to people who were discriminated against and called slaves. 
They were called slaves. They weren’t enslaved people, they were called slaves. I think we can do 
better. I think we have the moral compass to do better.  
 
Councilman Biering: Stated, we have had emails and I have talked with Mrs. Johnson. As far as 
Confederate Memorial Day, I have no difference to that day. I did not know what it was when it 
came up originally. I had to look it up to see. I am up to discussion on that. I do have a hard time 
erasing or diminishing history in any way, shape, or form. I know you said it has been moved 
several times and we will have to explore the legal process to that and whether it can be moved 
now. The law did just change not too long ago. I am open to exploring our options with that. I do 
not know if this is something that council decides or if we have to put it to referendum.  I am open 
to discussion and suggestions on how we look at that.  
 
Councilman Tripp: Stated, I basically feel the same way. I also did not know when that holiday 
was, but I think Columbus Day is in October. As far as the monument, no matter who it is or was, 
I would be hard pressed to vote for any monument to be destroyed.  
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, I am not saying destroy. I am saying, move from this location to 
another.  
 
Councilman Trippe: Stated, I am up for discussion on this.  
 
Dr. Flowers: Stated, my grandfather fought in that war. I am against any movement to erase any 
history. When you start erasing history, history will repeat itself. You have got to remind yourself 
of where the history was. The reminder needs to be there all the time if you are not going to repeat 
history. When you start destroying history and you start destroying monuments, and try to change 
history to meet the current narrative, then we have a big problem in this country. I think this is 
where we are. If you start messing with history, then you start lying to ourselves, our children, and 
the community. So, I think we do need to have a conversation about where we are now, and why 
we are wanting to destroy history when we need that to remind ourselves of history.  
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, I want to be clear, I said, “Not destroy or diminish history in any way.” 
I said, I have many friends from all walks of life. 
 
Dr. Flowers: Stated, I know you said that, but when you start messing with monuments and stuff 
like that, which from a legal standpoint I don’t think we can move it based on the law, but that is 
neither here nor there. When you start changing history or start trying to start changing history for 
whatever reason, then you repeat problems over and over again. Look at where the Israelis are 
right now. They were castigated and have been since biblical times as you well know. Slavery was 
in the bible as you well know. Let’s look at history and not try to change history by moving 
monuments and stuff like that.  
 



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

9 
 

Councilman Taylor: Stated, when it was moved before we did not have a conversation, it was just 
moved.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, there are several different things going on here. Number one, and Dr. 
Flowers may have alluded to this, what can we do under the law? Let me address the holiday first 
and come back to the monument. My understanding of the County’s holiday schedule is that we 
adopted the state holiday schedule. Now, the state may adopt Confederate Memorial Day as a 
holiday, that is not something that I know the answer to because I do not spend a lot of time on 
that.  
 
Mr. Griffin: Stated, they do.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, if that is something that we wanted to change, then we can discuss 
that. My thought on having the same holiday schedule between the county and the state,  is that 
when one agency is closed, the other agency would typically be closed. Since we work hand in 
hand, it makes sense that we have the same holiday schedule. Then the people at the state level 
make those decisions. I am not saying that it's right or wrong. Maybe the state shouldn’t have that 
as a holiday. I thought we were just adopting the state holiday schedule. We didn’t put in 
predetermined thought into the process that we want to be closed on Confederate Memorial Day 
in the years that I have been on Council. We simply followed the state holiday schedule. If we 
want to change that, that is fine, I am open to discussion.  
As it relates to the monument, in Phillip’s defense, number one, none of us can change history, 
that is a fact. We live in a world right now, and I am going to step on some toes when I say this, 
but I am going to say it, we are so divided, and I won't say why I think that, but most of you know 
why I think that. We have leaders that demonize people, just like this issue with immigration. 
Certainly we need to do something to control it, but guess what? Everyone in this room is an 
immigrant. All our families were immigrants, we did own America. Phillip is right, there were 
very few people that were indigenous to this country. I am from Scottish-Irish descent, none of us 
were from here. I am not saying that there aren’t things that need to be done here, but we have got 
to stop demonizing people. As it relates to the monument, we are not going to change history. The 
Civil War happened and the confederacy existed. People have different opinions on why the war, 
but certainly one of the reasons we had the war was because of slavery and slavery ended, and that 
is a good thing. We can not change the fact that it existed. In fact, it existed for nearly 250 years. 
The year 1619 was when the first slaves came to America, and we didn’t change until 1776. Even 
though Alexander Hamilton, George Washington, and all those guys had this great idea of forming 
the constitution and doing all these things, they didn’t fix the problem for 250 years. Now, as to 
why the monument was put where it was, I have no idea because I was not on council then. I know 
it wasn’t in the location that it is now. I wish it wasn’t in the location that it is in now. It is in a 
horrible location and destroys the front few of the court house. Now, was it in a better location 
before they moved it? I don’t know exactly where it was at or where it was moved the second time 
or the third time but, I'm not opposed to looking at that. If there's a place, whether we move it off 
the Courthouse ground, I'm not saying we should do that? I don't know if we can even move it 
from this current location under the law. We need to first check that, but we've got to stop, you 
know, just trying to demonize people because they have a different opinion than we have. We can't 
do that because, you know why, our leadership doesn't reflect that. Until we start doing that, we're 
never gonna heal the divide of this thing.  If we want to move it to a different location, let's discuss 



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

10 
 

where we wanna move it to. Get it out from the front of the courthouse. I don't have a problem 
with that. That way maybe people don't have to walk right by when they go in. Everything 
everybody said is right, we're not gonna change history. Maybe the state law won't make us move. 
We don't know any of that. We got our own legal counsel, and I am an attorney but I can tell you 
I don't know what the act says, because that's just not an act that I look at, and probably neither is 
our council. But if we want to relocate or do something so that we can at least show some effort 
that we’re compassionate to the other opinion. I'm not opposed to that, but it certainly can't be 
destroyed. Maybe we don't want to move it from the grounds completely. Let's look at the history 
of where it was, and let's look at the history of why it's moved because, I don't know that history. 
We can figure it out as far as the holidays are concerned. Like I said, I just simply thought we 
adopted the state holiday schedule because it made the most sense. I don't think we can be criticized 
for, or have someone trying to claim we're not being sensitive to somebody's thoughts, that's just 
the decision we made because both agencies work hand in hand. They are open and closed on the 
same days. Maybe we need to have that conversation with our state legislatures, let them change 
that holiday. That's just my opinion of it, and the only thing I would say is that we could ask our 
administrator to give us a history of the monument, its location, its movements, and when all that 
occurred. Maybe try to come up with some consensus from there, but we're not going to resolve it 
tonight. I can tell you that.   
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, I just want to have a conversation. 
 
Councilman Biering: Stated, I want to say I concur. So, I jumped right in first being one of the 
youngest members so, you never know how that's going to go. Not just the youngest member, but 
one of the shortest term members. Last year I was highly impressed with this council's unanimous 
vote to fully fund a life size replica P 51 to honor the Tuskegee Airman. That is something we're 
showing solidarity, we're showing that we value our history, we value all members of our 
Community, and all the history of our community. I am okay with discussing the monument, its 
locations and history of it. I love to see all that. I can tell you this, you have a council here that if 
you bring something up of somebody with significance from this community that was a part of 
this community's past, we'll work hand in hand with you to honor those of all backgrounds and all 
religions. We're here for that. I mean that's why I think we bring ourselves together by working 
hand in hand for the Tuskegee. I was very humbled to see the dedication for this and all the people 
that were out here. That is a very big part of our history. There's so many people of greatness with 
all backgrounds in this community. I'm looking forward to discussing something with somebody 
right now about the first African American doctor that was in this community. I don't know 
whether he actually was or not, we have to get some history on that. I'm a hundred percent for 
honoring all people of this community so, I'm open for that conversation. I look forward to hearing 
what we come up with.  
 
F.  Columbus Day 
 
***Please see this discussed under “Confederate Monument”. 
 

 
G. Public Comment Rules 

 



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

11 
 

Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, I have never held my position as Chairman of County Council any 
more important than anyone else on this Council. All I frankly do is “herd the cats”. I don't have 
any more responsibility than anybody else, but I do have the responsibility and control of public 
comments. The way I control it is probably different from the way anybody else would control it. 
You know we all control things differently. One thing we've done over the years to address public 
comments is that we put a time limit. Doc remembers there were times when people would talk 
the whole hour of public comment, then when I would come to the meeting, we had to put some 
restrictions on it. There were some suggestions made about an egg timer, but I don't want to be 
one to enforce the egg timer. Maybe the next chairman can bring the egg timer. I think when you 
put an egg timer up there, you automatically offend the citizens. We try to enforce the three minute 
rule, and for the most part, most people adhere within that time frame. Now the issue that we have 
is that citizens will come and talk about the same issue over and over and over again and again and 
again. Now, part of the reason that they say that they do that is because we don't ever do anything 
to resolve their issue. Maybe there is some truth to that. If it's an issue we can't resolve, we need 
to tell them we can't resolve it. So, that they're not going to keep coming.  We can't put lights up 
for example because we don't have the authority to do that. Only the co-ops and other people, but 
maybe the issue is communication rather than us controlling public comments. I don't have a 
problem with the same person coming up. It does get frustrating when this same person comes up 
and talks about the same things. So, if there are issues with public comments, I need to hear the 
input back from you all. I think if they come up with a new subject, they obviously should be 
allowed to talk. I'm a big believer in open government. The best thing you can do is let people get 
up and air their agreements sometimes, because then they feel like, number one, they're part of the 
process because they are, we represent them. I want to hear some input on what we should do as 
far as public comments. We try to adhere to three minutes, but if you all have some suggestion 
about how to curtail or limit public comments I'm all ears.  
 
Councilman Trippe: Stated, I didn't really see anything wrong with how we have been running it. 
Mrs. Johnson came a few times, almost every time, but I kind of got to where I looked forward to 
her coming.  We were trying to help her.   
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, let me say this so that we can dispel that notion. I know you're new 
on council, sometimes for a reason. It might be because they don't like the way we're doing things, 
so don't be hesitant to share your idea just because you're new to council. We're all citizens of the 
public. We serve the public and you're in that seat because the people put you there. Certainly we 
need to try to speak to the citizen or respond to the citizen so they don't keep addressing the same 
issue, but as far as the timing, I haven't seen where that's been excessive.  
 
Councilman Taylor: Stated, I think the timing and all of it has been good. Now as a councilman, 
if I bring an issue to the floor, I can bring it one time and it is voted up or down. In the case with 
Mrs. Johnson, I only use Mrs. Johnson as an example because this was a case, I've been to Mrs. 
Johnson's house several times. There’s scratch marks on my wife's car to prove it. I went to her 
house, I knew where she lived and when she moved there. I know where she lived before she 
moved there. I know the people in that community. I have family in that community. So, I know a 
little bit about the community, but I talked to Mrs. Johnson several times. I go to her house, sit 
down and talk with her about how to get in touch with DOT.  I said, let's talk to DOT about a 
traffic light, traffic patterns, and try to get a person here to talk about a light. There is a light in her 



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

12 
 

front yard that she didn't pay for. The lights at my church that she referenced at our meeting, we 
paid for them to be installed and we pay the bill for them. Again, I talked with the sheriff, sent 
people over, talked with Mrs. Hazel, and she's mad that I talked to Mrs. Hazel to try to negotiate 
with her to get some things done. Scott went over there several times to talk with her. There is a 
lot of conversation and communication which you talk about going. I am saying maybe we could 
limit it. If it's a new issue, bring the new issue, but if we're working on the issue for you, it's a 
business meeting, it's not a circus. We're not as strict as the city. The city says you can only talk 
about things that's on their agenda. We don't do that. You can come talk about what you want to 
talk about. Now, there was one other issue that came up, and it wasn't really from me. The staff 
didn't feel that they should be held accountable to read somebody else's comments when it's posted 
online. So, how do we do that? Do we take those online comments and post them on a screen for 
the public to see? Now, in one case I read the comments. I got them on the phone and said, “I'm 
gonna read your comments”. Someone could say anything in their submitted comment, and, the 
staff are saying, it is not right to make them read something that may be offensive to them. So, that 
was just a conversation. I wasn’t in charge of the whole public comment issue.  
 
Mr. Griffin: Stated, we got some more information from the state Attorney General's office on 
that. I'm talking about that specific issue of online comments. It puts our staff in a bad place. I 
mean, Mrs. Johnson's comments were fine. It just generally puts our staff in a bad spot. Whether 
it's me reading it or them reading it, they said that you only have to accept online comments if it's 
a COVID or a disaster related situation, meaning it's only online and there is no one there in person. 
Otherwise, you do not have to take comments online. We can still broadcast the meeting online 
and they can watch it online. However, if you want to make comments, you need to come to that 
meeting and do it face to face.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, that is what we have adopted now, correct?  
 
Mr. Griffin: Stated, yes, that is the state's stance, and that's pretty much what everybody in the 
association of counties is doing.  
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, I am okay with that. We can broadcast, in other words, and they can 
receive, they just can't input and I'm okay with that.. You know COVID caused all of us to have 
to do some unusual things we have never done. I think having the meetings broadcasted is a good 
idea, and not taking the comments, we've already seen that to be a fiasco. However, broadcasting 
it is good. We ought to be trying to get as many people as we can to engage in the government 
process.  
 
Councilman Biering: Stated, I defer to you as to how you handle the meetings. Mrs. Felicia 
Johnson coming up and speaking, I know it is repetitive but I think we just helped her with one of 
her big problems. I think she's very gracious for that. I don't have any problem with people getting 
up and speaking. I mean it's a short period of time. It hasn't gotten out of hand. We don't have 
three, four, five people doing it to the point that it is holding the meeting up forever. So, I will 
entertain a conversation on that, but my personal feelings are that it hasn't got to the point where 
it belabors the meeting so I don’t have a big issue with that. I do know most of the stuff she brings 
up is DOT and otherwise. I'm still working with her and I think we're making some headway on 
that, so maybe we can educate and help her with those items. As far as online comments and 



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

13 
 

reading them aloud, I think there's no place for that. I deal with that in my business on a daily 
basis, people get to go online, not saying those things have come up recently, but they get to say 
things without repercussions, without having to look somebody in the face, and that's a recipe for 
us to have a disaster. Now, as far as participating in the live streaming, 100%, everybody needs to 
see what we're doing. Total transparency. If it is important enough to put on public record, it’s 
important enough to show up.   
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, we've done a lot over the years to streamline the meeting. When I 
was first elected, we used to meet on Monday night and Tuesday night. The Monday night meeting 
was our committee meeting, the committees that we’re all assigned to. We met on Monday night, 
and all five of us were sitting on the bench, but each committee chairman would call their particular 
committee to adjourn and the public had no idea what was going on. We were discussing it and 
we're coming back on Tuesday night and voting on the same things discussing it again, because 
two members on the committee couldn't participate in the discussion, so the next night we all talked 
about it. It made no sense, so we just decided to go to one meeting. We probably should use the 
committees occasionally more than we do to talk about items.   
 
Council Time 
 
Councilman Trippe: Stated, I want to thank Councilman Flowers, Chairman Murdaugh and 
Councilman Taylor for helping Scott and I. We've been here about a year and you all have helped 
us, Meagan and Kaela, Kevin. We asked a lot of questions and are still asking a lot of questions 
but we thank you for putting up with us. We have to ask questions because that's how we find 
things out. I thank you all for that.  
 
Councilman Biering: On that note, I know you said we used to have a meeting on Monday night 
and then Tuesday night. Monday night was pretty much not necessary, but do we need to schedule 
more of these work sessions or another informational meeting so we can work through some of 
these items in a more complete way, in my opinion, and can we do that or what are your suggestions 
on that? 
 
Chairman Murdaugh: Stated, if there is an issue that needs to go before your committee, then you 
as the chairman of that committee don't need my permission. I would like to know, maybe call me 
and say, Chairman, I'm going to ask my committee to meet. Then we coordinate it to Kevin, but if 
there's a topic you feel like needs to go before your committee, by all means, call your committee 
together. Call your committee together, meet and discuss those items, and then you can report it 
back to us at the next Council meeting. I like the workshops, personally, I don't think we need to 
do them every month, maybe not even every quarter, but a couple of times a year I think would be 
helpful. It keeps us up to speed and we kind of keep our focus on things that we want to accomplish 
in the short term, and then maybe have some farther out in the long term. So, maybe an even more 
detailed work session, like a full day, where we can really get into some nuts and bolts on some 
topics. That is a lot of work for the staff and they will need time to prepare for that.  
 

Dr. Flowers moved to go into executive session to discuss the following: Real Estate– Emergency 
Operations Center, Old Post office, Charter School, and Pool Project, Contractual– Public Works, 



County Council Work Session 
January 16, 2024 

14 
 

Economic Development Update, and Solar Farm FILOT. Councilman Biering seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Executive Session 
 
a. Real Estate 

1. Emergency Operations Center 
2. Old Post Office 
3. Charter School 
4. Pool Projet 

b. Contractual – Public Works 
c. Economic Development Update 
d. Solar Farm FILOT 

Councilman Taylor moved to exit executive session. Councilman Trippe seconded the motion, 
which was carried unanimously. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Dr. Flowers moved to adjourn the meeting, Councilman Biering seconded the motion, which was 
carried unanimously.  
 
This 6th day of February 2024.    
 
        __________________________ 
        Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
ATTEST:  
 
______________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Clerk to Council  



                                                             11/2005 

CDBG & HOME Notice of Public Hearing Concerning Needs Assessment 
 

COLLETON COUNTY 
      
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Tuesday, February 6, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. in Colleton County Council Chambers, 
located at 109 Benson Street, Walterboro, SC, Colleton County will hold a public hearing to solicit public input on 
community needs and priorities for housing, public facilities, and economic development. At this public hearing 
Colleton County will provide the results of its needs assessment and the activities which might be undertaken to meet 
identified needs, including the estimated amount proposed to be used for activities that will benefit persons of low and 
moderate income. County Council will be holding the meeting in person. Meetings are broadcasted live at 
www.colletoncounty.org/live. Individuals who would like to participate in public comments should attend in person.   
 
The County will also discuss matters related to housing needs and Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing in 
anticipation of participation in the Beaufort County/Lowcountry Regional HOME Consortium funded by the US 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 
 
This public hearing and the matters to be discussed are subject to the provisions of the County’s Citizen Participation 
Plan, developed in anticipation of participation in the State of South Carolina's Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program, providing for the participation of the citizens of County in the planning and implementation of 
community and economic development projects which will involve CDBG funds. The Citizen Participation Plan is 
available for review at Colleton County, Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  Persons 
with questions or comments concerning the public hearing or the Citizen Participation Plan may contact Kimberly 
Mullinax, Lowcountry Council of Governments, PO Box 98, Yemassee, SC 29945, (843) 473-3990.  
 
Colleton County does not discriminate on the basis of age, color, religion, sex, national origin, familial status or 
disability in the admission or access to, or treatment or employment in its federally assisted programs or activities. 
Deadgrea Sadler, PO Box 157, Walterboro, SC 29488, (843)549-5221 has been designated to coordinate compliance 
with the nondiscrimination requirements contained in the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development's 
regulations. 
 
Note:  Assistance will be provided to accommodate the special needs of disabled and/or Limited English Proficient 
persons upon request with forty-eight hour notice. 
 
CDBG & HOME Aviso de audiencia pública sobre evaluación de necesidades 
Nota: Se proporcionará asistencia para acomodar las necesidades especiales de personas discapacitadas o con 
dominio limitado del inglés previa solicitud con un aviso de cuarenta y ocho horas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.colletoncounty.org/live


Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted : February 6, 2024 
Committee Referral : N/A    
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-02 

 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 

 
[A Resolution to Authorize Acceptance and Budgeting of Various Grants for FY 2023-2024.] 

 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The County Budget Ordinance requires a Resolution to record all non-budgeted revenues and non-

budgeted grant revenues; and 
 
2. The Colleton County Museum, Farmers Market and Commercial Kitchen, is the Office of Primary 

Responsibility (OPR) related to the receipt of non-budgeted income for FY24 received from the 
South Carolina Arts Commission FY 24 Rural Art of Community Grant in the amount of $8,998.00; 
and 

 
3. The Colleton County Economic Development Department, is the Office of Primary Responsibility 

(OPR) related to the receipt of non-budgeted income for FY24 received from the South Carolina 
Department of Agriculture for the Colleton County Ag Center Project in the amount of $1,000,000 
and South Carolina Department of Commerce for a Rural Infrastructure Authority Economic 
Infrastructure Grant in the amount of $4,550,930 for the Ivanhoe to Exit 57 Sewer Project; 
and 

 
4. The Colleton County Solid Waste Department, is the Office of Primary Responsibility (OPR) 

related to the receipt of non-budgeted income for FY 2024 received from the South Carolina 
Department of Health and Environmental Control for a Solid Waste Recycling Grant in the 
amount of $250,000 for a Solid Waste Recycling Center. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY 
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
   
1. County Council hereby authorizes the designation of appropriate general ledger accounts to record 

revenues and expenditures in the following fund for the grant and unbudgeted revenue for FY24 as 
listed: 
 
a. Fund 155 – County Accommodations Tax Fund; South Carolina Arts Commission; $8,998.00; 

FY 24 Rural Art of Community Grant; $2,248.00 match budgeted in Fund 155 .  
b. Fund 120 – Special Revenue Fund; South Carolina Department of Agriculture; $1,000,000; Ag 

Center Project. 
c. Fund 120 – Special Revenue Fund; South Carolina Department of Commerce, Rural 

Infrastructure Authority Economic Infrastructure Grant; $4,550,930 for Ivanhoe to Exit 
57 Sewer Project; match is provided in Fund 143 in the amount of $671,535. 

d. Fund 120 – Special Revenue Fund; South Carolina Department of Health and 
Environmental Control, Solid Waste Recycling Grant; $250,000. 
 
 

2. The above listed OPRs (Offices of Primary Responsibility) are responsible for preparing any external 
reports related to said funds, complying with grant terms and conditions, coordinating reimbursement 
requests with the Finance Department in addition to being the responsible parties for providing copies 



of external reports to the Finance Office, grant auditors, and to external auditors at the end of FY24 as 
requested for this grant/non-budgeted revenue received. 
 
 

ATTEST:    SIGNED: 
 
 
 
________________________    ___________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk    Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 
                     COUNCIL VOTE:                 
                         OPPOSED:  



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted :   February 6, 2024  
Committee Referral : N/A    
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A  
   
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-01 
 

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 

[To Declare February as Black History Month in Colleton County.] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. Black History Month is an annual celebration of achievements by African Americans and a time 

for recognizing their central role in United States history; and 
 
2. Since 1976, every U.S. president has officially designated the month of February as Black 

History Month; and 
 
3. February is recognized nationally as Black History Month. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY 
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
   
The month of February is hereby designated as Black History Month in Colleton County. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:    SIGNED: 
 
 
 
________________________    ________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk    Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 

COUNCIL VOTE:  
OPPOSED:   

 
 
 
 

 

 



Sponsor(s) : County Council    
Adopted :  February 6, 2024          
Committee Referral : N/A            
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A  
  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-03 
 

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 
[A Resolution to Award the Contract for Architectural Services for the Colleton County 
Detention Center Renovations and Upgrades to MRB Group Consulting, P.C.] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The County advertised a Request for Proposals CC-39 for architectural services for County 

projects; and 
 
2. Two firms presented their proposals to the committee for the Detention Center renovations 

and upgrades; and 
 

3. MRB Group Consulting, P.C. meets all of the requirements of the project and was selected 
by the committee; and 

 
4. Staff recommends that the contract be awarded to MRB Group Consulting, P.C.; and 

 
5. Funding for this project is budgeted in Fund 143.  The negotiated contract price for services 

is $78,500, which is subject to final approval by County Council.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL 
DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
1. County Council hereby awards the contract to MRB Group Consulting, P.C., contingent upon 

review of same by the County Attorney, and authorizes the County Administrator to execute 
said contract. 

 
2. Funding for this expenditure is provided in Fund 143. 
 
ATTEST:   SIGNED: 
 
 
 
_____________________   _____________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk   Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 
    COUNCIL VOTE:     
    OPPOSED:  



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted :  February 6, 2024 
Committee Referral : N/A   
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A  
  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-04 
 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 
[A Resolution to Award Bid FMD-17 for the Purchase of one Auto Car to 
Worldwide Equipment, Inc.] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The County advertised a Request for Bids, FMD-17 for the purchase of one Auto Car; 

and  
 
2. Two bids were received, and Worldwide Equipment, Inc. was the lowest qualified 

bidder for the Auto Car in the amount of $158,015; 
 
3. Funding for this equipment is provided by the Fund 211 – Solid Waste Fund Balance 

for FY 2023-2024. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY 
COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
1. County Council hereby awards the contract in accordance with Bid FMD-17 to the 

Worldwide Equipment, Inc. for the purchase of one Auto Car in accordance with the 
attached bid tabulation. 

 
2. The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute the contracts on behalf of 

the County pending approval of same by the County Attorney. 
 
3. Funding for this equipment shall come from the Fund 211 – Solid Waste Fund 

Balance for FY 2023-2024. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   SIGNED: 
 
 
 
________________________   __________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk   Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 
    COUNCIL VOTE:  
    OPPOSED:  
 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted : February 6, 2024   
Committee Referral : N/A    
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A    
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-05 
 

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 
[A Resolution to Amend the Colleton County Record of Roads to Include Caboose 
Court.] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The owners and residents of Caboose Court are requesting that County Council 

consider approving conditional acceptance of Caboose Court into the County Record 
of Roads; and 
 

2. The acceptance of the road is allowed in accordance with Chapter 11.16 – 
Specifications for Accepting Existing Roads Into County Road System of the 
County’s Code of Ordinances; and 

 
3. The owners and residents of Caboose Court have paid the necessary funding to 

complete the required improvements to accept the roadway into the county road 
maintenance system.   

4. Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY 
COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:   
1. Acceptance of the following roads into the Colleton County Record of Roads is 

hereby approved: 
 
 a. Caboose Court  
 
 
ATTEST:   SIGNED: 
 
 
 
________________________                             __________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk                             Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman  
 
       COUNCIL VOTE:  
       OPPOSED: 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted :  February 6, 2024 
Committee Referral : N/A   
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A  
  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-07 
 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 
[A Resolution to Award the Contract in Accordance with Bid FM-58 for Courthouse 
Window Replacement and Exterior Painting Project.] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The County advertised a Request for Bids, FM-58 for the Courthouse Window 

Replacement and Exterior Painting Project; and  
 
2. Five bids were received; and 
 
3. Mitchell Construction Co., Inc. meets all of the requirements of the bid and is the 

lowest bidder; and 
 

4. Staff has reviewed the bids, and recommends the contract be awarded to Mitchell 
Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $907,612; and 

 
5. Funding for this project is available in the Capital Fund – Fund 115. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY 
COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
1. County Council hereby awards the contract in accordance with Bid FM-28 to 

Mitchell Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $907,612 for the Courthouse 
Window Replacement and Exterior Painting Project.   
 

2. The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the 
County pending approval of same by the County Attorney 

 
3. Funding is available in the Capital Fund – Fund 115.  

 
 

ATTEST:   SIGNED: 
 
 
_____________________   __________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk   Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 
    COUNCIL VOTE:    
    OPPOSED: 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted :  February 6, 2024 
Committee Referral : N/A   
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A  
  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-06 
 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 
[A Resolution to Approve a Food Service Agreement for the Sheriff’s Office for the Colleton 
County Detention Center.] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The County advertised a Request for Bids, CCSO-08 Food Service Program for the 

Colleton County Detention Center; and  
 

2. Two bids were received; and 
 
3. Summit Food Service, LLC meets all of the requirements of the bid and is the lowest 

bidder; and 
 

4. The Sheriff’s Office wishes to enter into a Food Service Partnership Agreement with 
Summit Food Service, LLC for the exclusive right to provide food service at the 
Colleton County Detention Center; and 

 
5. It is deemed to be in the best interest of the citizens of the County to authorize 

execution of said Food Service Partnership Agreement.  
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL 
DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
1. County Council hereby approves the food service agreement in accordance with Bid 

CCSO-08 to Summit Food Service, LLC for the exclusive right to provide food 
service at the Colleton County Detention Center. 
 

2. The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the 
County pending approval of same by the County Attorney 
 

3. Funding for the cost of the contracts is included in the FY 2024 Budget. 
 
ATTEST:   SIGNED: 
 
 
 
_____________________   __________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk   Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 
    COUNCIL VOTE:  
    OPPOSED: 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted : February 6, 2024 
Committee Referral : N/A    
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A    
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-08 
 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 
[A Resolution to Approve a Change Order to the County’s Current Contract with 
IP Builders, Inc. for the Old Transfer Station Reuse Project.]  
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The County received funding from the State for the Old Coleton County Transfer 

Station Reuse plan to convert the old transfer station into a recycling center; and  
 

2. IP Builders, Inc. has done previous work at the Solid Waste Transfer Station, and 
the County currently has an open contract with IP Builders, Inc.; and 

  
3. It is recommended that Council approve the change order in the amount of 

$229,738.14 for this project. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY 
COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:   
1. County Council hereby approves the change order for the Old Transfer Station 

Reuse Project – Solid Waste Recycling Center (included herein by reference) for in 
the amount of $229,738.14. 
 

2. Funding shall come from the Special Revenue Fund – Fund 120. 
 
3. The County Administrator is authorized to execute all required documents for this 

Change Order. 
 
 
ATTEST:   SIGNED: 
 
 
 
________________________   __________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk   Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 
 
    COUNCIL VOTE:  
    OPPOSED:  
 



Sponsor(s)     :  County Council 
Adopted      :  February 6, 2024 
Committee Referral     :  N/A 
Committee Consideration Date   :  N/A 
Committee Recommendation    :  N/A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-09 
 

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 
[A Resolution to Declare Surplus Various Vehicles and Equipment and to Authorize Their Sale in 
Accordance with County Policy.] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The Facilities Management and Fleet Management departments have evaluated various vehicles and 

equipment, and deemed them to be no longer suitable for County operations; and 
 

2. It is recommended that Council declare said vehicles and equipment surplus and authorize their sale 
or trade on upgraded equipment or contractual arrangements related to the equipment.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY 
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
  
1. The following vehicles and equipment submitted by the Fire-Rescue and Fleet Management 

departments are hereby declared surplus to the needs of the County. 
 

Description  Serial Number 
2012 Ford F-350 1FDWF36S33EB98580 
2012 Chevrolet Suburban 1GNWK5EG9CR205248 
2019 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT8KH514166 
2008 Chevrolet Tahoe 1GNEC03078R268728 
2005 Ford F-150 1FDXF46P65EC36604 
1999 Mack Roll Off IM2P264YOXM027984 
2003 Freightliner TT 1FUJALAV43LK55968 
2003 Rack RD6888S IM2P267C23M066327 
2013 International Workstar 1HTGSSJT2DJ388283 
Kohler 150R0ZJ Generator  379005 
Olympian G50F3 Generator  NGC00827/199949/03 

 
 
2. Said vehicles and equipment shall be placed for sale or for trade on upgraded equipment or 

contractual arrangements related to the equipment. 
 
3. The proceeds from the sale of the above vehicles and equipment are to go into the Fire-Rescue Fund – 

Fund 156 and the Capital Fund – Fund 115.   
 

   
 



ATTEST:      SIGNED: 
 
 
________________________    _______________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk    Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
        

COUNCIL VOTE:   
       OPPOSED: 



Sponsor(s)     :  County Council 
Adopted      :  February 6, 2024 
Committee Referral     :  N/A 
Committee Consideration Date   :  N/A 
Committee Recommendation    :  N/A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-10 
 

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 

[To Authorize the Initiation of Condemnation Proceedings for the Purpose of Acquiring 
Certain Real Property Owned by FLB, LLC and Being Subject to a Conservation Easement 
in Favor of the Lowcountry Land Trust.] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. The Colleton County Council has determined that it is necessary and in the public interest 

of Colleton County to acquire certain real property as more fully described herein below 
now owned by FLB, LLC (A South Carolina Limited Liability Company) and being 
located near Neyles Crossroads on the southwestern side of Maybank Highway (S.C. 
Secondary Road No. S-15-199) near its intersection with Manigo Lane for the purpose of 
constructing a new Fire Sub-Station for and to be operated by the Colleton County Fire and 
Rescue Department which is a public purpose as defined by South Carolina Law; and 

 
2. The proper public officials of Colleton County have been unable to acquire the needed 

interest in and to the below-described real property by a negotiated conveyance due to the 
fact that such real estate is subject to and encumbered by a Conservation Easement and the 
conditions and restriction thereof unto and in favor of the Lowcountry Land Trust.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL 
DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
1. The Colleton County Council does hereby authorize and direct that Colleton County shall 

acquire by Condemnation for the purposes as stated and set forth herein above in 
accordance with the “South Carolina Eminent Domain Procedure Act” pursuant to Sections 
28-2-10, et. seq., of the 1976 S.C. Code of Laws, as amended, the subject real property and 
interest therein as more fully described herein below, as follows: 

 
Fee Simple Title in and to that certain Two (2.00) acre tract of land situate in Colleton 
County, South Carolina, near Neyles Crossroads, and being located on the southwestern side 
of Maybank Highway (S.C. Secondary Road No. S-15-199) near its intersection with Manigo 
Lane, and being designated as a portion of Colleton County TMS No. 225-00-00-098 (29.818 
acres), and being more fully and completely shown and described and delineated on and by 
reference being craved to a Plat of 2.00 Acres prepared for Colleton County by Gary J. 
Strobe, S.C.R.L.S. No. 9323, with Palmetto Surveys, LLC, dated 12/10/2023 and recorded on 
1/9/2024 with the Colleton County Register of Deeds Office in Plat Book 966, at Page 26, and 
being a portion of the 29.818 acre parcel of land previously conveyed to FLB, LLC by a Deed 



from MWV-Land Sales, Inc. dated 9/17/2012 and recorded on 9/18/2012 with the Colleton 
County Register of Deeds Office in Record Book 2051, at Pages 83-88.   
 
2. The County Administrator for Colleton County is hereby authorized and directed to hire 

and retain a suitable attorney of his choosing to institute and handle the necessary 
Condemnation Proceedings for and on behalf of Colleton County in accordance with the 
requirements of the “South Carolina Eminent Domain Procedure Act” pursuant to Sections 
28-2-10, et. seq., of the 1976 S.C. Code of Laws, as amended, against FLB, LLC and the 
Lowcountry Land Trust for the purpose of obtaining and acquiring a Fee Simple Interest 
in and Title to the subject real property as more fully described herein above.   

 
ATTEST:                                                                           SIGNED: 
 
 
 
_______________________________                             _______________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk                                            Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman  
 
                                                                                            COUNCIL VOTE: 
                                                                                             OPPOSED: 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted : February 6, 2024  
Committee Referral : N/A    
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A    
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-11 
 

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 
 

[A Resolution to Appoint Employees to the Colleton County Grievance Committee.] 
 
WHEREAS: 
 

 
1. The Colleton County Grievance Committee currently has three vacancies as a result of term 

expiration; and 
 
2. The County Administrator has reviewed the candidates and recommends that Council appoint 

the following members to the committee. 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY 
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
1. The following employees are hereby appointed to serve on the Colleton County Grievance 

Committee:  
a. Term ending January 1, 2028: Donna Lamb, Nancy Wright (Alternate), and Frankie 

Varnadoe. 
 

   
 
ATTEST:    SIGNED: 
 
 
________________________    ________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk    Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 
 
     COUNCIL VOTE:   

 OPPOSED: 
 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted : February 6, 2024   
Committee Referral : N/A    
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A    
 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-12 

 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 

 
[To Authorize the Council Clerk to Advertise for Board Vacancies] 

 
WHEREAS: 

 
1. Colleton County Lowcountry Regional Transportation Authority has two vacancies; and 
 
2. Colleton County Board of Adjustments & Appeals has four vacancies (2 General Citizenry, 1 

Heating and Air Conditioning, and 1 Carpentry); and  
 

3. Colleton County Board of Assessment Appeals has one vacancy; and 
 

4. Colleton County Keep Colleton Beautiful has one vacancy; and 
 

5. Accommodations Tax Advisory Board has one vacancy (Lodging); and  
 
6. The County Council is the appointing authority for Boards. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL 
DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
The Council Clerk is hereby directed to advertise for the vacancies. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   SIGNED: 
 
________________________   __________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk   Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
 
    COUNCIL VOTE: 
    OPPOSED: 



Sponsor(s) : County Council 
Adopted : February 6, 2024 
Committee Referral : N/A    
Committee Consideration Date : N/A    
Committee Recommendation : N/A    

 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-13 

 
COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY 

 
[To Appoint Members to Board Vacancies.] 

 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. Colleton County Recreation Commission has two vacancies; and 

Applicants: Ashley Shearin and Mark Tomedolskey  
 
2. Colleton County Drug and Alcohol Commissions has one vacancy; and 

Applicant: Shannon Murray 
 
3. Colleton County Fire- Rescue Commission has two vacancies; and 

Applicants: Charles Bright, Clyde Capers, Brian Drew, and David Sauls 
 

4. Southern Carolina Alliance has one vacancy; and 
Candidate: Chairman Steven D. Murdaugh for reappointment. 

 
5. The County Council is the appointing authority for Boards. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL 
DULY ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 
The Council Hereby appoints the following:  
 
Colleton County Recreation Commission: Ashley Shearin and Mark Tomedolskey 
 
Colleton County Drug and Alcohol Commission: Shannon Murray 
 
Colleton County Fire-Rescue Commission: __________________________________________ 
 
Southern Carolina Alliance: Chairman Steven D. Murdaugh 
 
 
ATTEST:   SIGNED: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Kaela Brinson, Council Clerk   Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman 
               
    COUNCIL VOTE:   
    OPPOSED:  


	02-06-24 RM
	6:00 P.M.

	December 5th Minutes
	January 16, 2024 Work Session
	AD COLLETON COUNTY NA 2024 (2)
	24-R-02 Various Grants - arts commission
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	24-R-01 February Black History Month
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	24-R-03 Award Contract for Architectural & Engineering  for Detention Center Upgrades
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	24-R-04 Award Bid Auto Car purchase
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	Adopted :  February 6, 2024
	Committee Referral : N/A
	Committee Consideration Date : N/A
	Committee Recommendation : N/A
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	24-R-05 Caboose Court Acceptance
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY
	WHEREAS:


	24-R-07 Award Bid for courthouse windowns and paint
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	24-R-06 Jail food service
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	24-R-08 transfer station
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	24-R-09 Surplus Vehicles and Equipment
	RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-09
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY
	WHEREAS:

	24-R-10 1.ABS.Resolution for Colleton County to Condemn 2.00 Acres on Maybank Highway.2-2-2024
	RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-10
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	24-R-11 Appoint Employees to Grievance Committee
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY
	WHEREAS:


	24-R-12 Board and Commission Vacancies
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	24-R-13 Appoint Members to Board Vacancies
	Sponsor(s) : County Council
	COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

	ADPC76B.tmp
	6:00 P.M.




